
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET 
02/07/18 REGULAR MEETING 

 
  



 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5a 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 31, 2018 

 

  



 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

 
 
 
BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS   PAGE 1 OF 7  

   

 
 
 
Barnstable, ss. 
 
At the regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners, held in the 
Superior Courthouse in Barnstable, on the thirty-first day of January, A.D. 2018 
 
 
Board Regional Commissioners: 
 
Ronald R. Beaty   Present 
 
Leo G. Cakounes  Present 
 
Mary Pat Flynn   Present  
 
 
Assembly of Delegates: 
 
Ronald Bergstrom  Delegate, Town of Chatham 
 
 
Staff Present: 
 
Jack Yunits   County Administrator 
 
Steve Tebo    Interim Assistant County Administrator  
 
Justyna Marczak  Human Resources Director 
 
Owen Fletcher   Executive Assistant, Administration 
 
Mary McIssac   Director of Finance/Treasurer 
 
Steve Amara   County Accountant 
 
Paul Niedzwiecki  Executive Director, Cape Cod Commission 
 
Kristy Senatori  Deputy Director, Cape Cod Commission 
 
Tom Cambareri  Water Resources Program Manager, Cape Cod Commission 
  
Gail Coyne   Fiscal Manager, Cape Cod Commission 
 
Mike Maguire   Director, Cape Cod Cooperative Extension 



 
 
 
                             BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                         JANUARY 31, 2018 
 
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 2 OF 7 
 

 
 
Diane Murphy   Deputy Director/Fisheries & Aquaculture Specialist,  

Cape Cod Cooperative Extension 
 
Stacy Gallagher  Director, Children’s Cove 
 
Sean O’Brien   Director, Department of Health & Environment 
 
Stephen Coan   Deputy Director, Fire Rescue Training Academy 
 
Paul Tucker   Deputy Director, Fire Rescue Training Academy 
 
Barbara Austin  Administrative Supervisor, Department of Health & Environment 
 
Beth Albert    Director, Department of Human Services 
 
Bill Traverse   Director, Information Technology 
 
Julie Ferguson   Director, Resource Development Office 
 
Daniel Schell   AmeriCorps Program Coordinator, Resource Development Office 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order  

 
Chairman Cakounes called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M. 
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 

3. Moment of Silence   
 
 
4. Public Comment 

 
No members of the public offered comment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
                             BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                         JANUARY 31, 2018 
 
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 3 OF 7 
 

 
5. Budget Workshop 

 
Commissioners’ Office  
 
Commissioner Beaty asked that the Board provide fund Human Rights Commission’s (HRC) 
budget at the same amount as last year. Mr. Yunits responded to a question by the Board 
regarding the HRC and detailed the County’s problems with rising employee costs. He also 
noted that the activities of the HRC were not proper County functions, and that those 
functions would be performed better by the Commonwealth. Commissioner Beaty expressed 
that he had spoken to John Reed of Yarmouth, a member of the HRC, and that the Board 
understood that they must begin to look for a physical space elsewhere and move to secure 
their own funding. Commissioner Cakounes noted that the Commissioners removed HRC 
funding in last year’s proposed budget and the Assembly did not add this money back. Rev. 
Dr. Katherine Epperly of Centerville, Vice-Chair of the HRC, spoke to the Board. She 
expressed that the HRC has not discussed moving away from the County. Commissioner 
Flynn spoke in support of funding for the HRC. Richard Lavoie of the Township of 
Barnstable spoke in support of keeping the HRC as part of the County. Commissioner 
Cakounes asked for the consensus of the Board. Commissioner Cakounes and Beaty 
expressed support, and Commission Flynn expressed her disapproval for the funding’s 
removal. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Cakounes to fund the Commissioner’s budget in the amount of 
$837,777.00, adding to the proposed budget: $30,160.00 for 12.5 hours of time, $7,056.00 
for health and fringe benefits, and $437 for Medicare costs for the County Clerk and; deleting 
$8,569.00 from the salary line for the Human Rights Commission, as recorded, 2nd by 
Commissioner Beaty, approved 2-1-0 (YES: Beaty, Cakounes. NO: Flynn) 
 
Assembly of Delegates 
 
Commissioner Cakounes spoke regarding his plan to split the functions of the Assembly 
Clerk and Regional Clerk. He explained that he wished to restructure County operations, and 
personnel, to increase efficiencies. Ronald Bergstrom, Delegate from Chatham, addressed 
the Board regarding his concern that the Assembly controlled the Assembly Clerk’s position, 
and that the Commissioners’ could not change its description or duties. Commissioner 
Cakounes stated that what he proposed did not do either. The Board also discussed removing 
the funding for the Assembly stenographer and the technology in the Assembly’s new 
meeting place. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Cakounes to fund the Assembly of Delegates’ budget in the amount 
of $248,042.00, adding to the proposed budget: 1) $60,231.00 for an additional 12.5 hours 
for the Assembly Clerk; 2) $14,115.00 in health and fringe benefit costs for those additional 
hours 3) $875.00 in Medicare costs for those hours, 4) $13,103.00 for associated retirement 
costs and, 5) $200.00 for copying costs; and deleting: 1) $90,481.00 in salary; 2) $21,201.00 
in benefit costs; 3) $1,312.00 in Medicare costs, $19,653.00 in proposed retirement costs;  



 
 
 
                             BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                         JANUARY 31, 2018 
 
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 4 OF 7 
 

$15,750.00 in costs for a stenographer, as recorded, 2nd by Commissioner Beaty, approved 
3-0-0. 
 
Information Technology  
 
Commissioner Cakounes spoke regarding his intent not to fund Joint Initiatives. He also 
detailed plans to fund a portion of the Information Technology’s budget through Joint 
Initiative funds as well as allow the Cape Cod Commission to bill the Information 
Technology Department for services. Mr. Yunits spoke regarding continuing work to ensure 
a smooth transition from the Cape Cod Commission and Information Technology 
Departments to deliver services. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Cakounes to instruct County staff to allocate the correct amount 
from joint initiatives to the Department of Information Technology, the County Dredge, and 
other related Departments, 2nd by Commissioner Beaty, approved 3-0-0. 

 
Joint Initiatives 

 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to instruct County staff to remove all funding from Joint 
Initiatives and reallocate it to related County Departments. joint initiatives to the Department 
of Information Technology, the County Dredge, and other related Departments, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0. 
 
Health 
 
Mr. O’Brien addressed the Board. There was a lengthy discussion regarding funds placed in 
various departmental budgets, including Health and Environment to address possible 
employee costs. There was a consensus of the board to remove all such placeholder salaries 
from departmental budgets. 
 
Human Services 
 
Ms. Albert spoke to the Board. My Choice program funding was discussed. Commissioner 
Flynn spoke in support of the department and regionalization of services. Commissioner 
Cakounes spoke regarding reducing costs. 
 
Children’s Cove 
 
Commissioner Cakounes highlighted the Cove’s grant applications and noted that it’s budget 
may need to be adjusted later depending on the outcome of those requests. 
 
Public Safety 
 
There was a discussion of the Sherriff’s unfunded pension liability. Commissioner Cakounes 
expressed that he would not support legislation to shift that burden to the State due to possible 
losses in County revenue. 



 
 
 
                             BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                         JANUARY 31, 2018 
 
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 5 OF 7 
 

 
Fire Rescue Training Academy 
 
The Board noted that this budget did not include money from a recently obtained legislative 
earmark. 
 
Cape Cod Commission 
 
There was a consensus of the Board that all License Plate Funds, as well as Cape Cod Water 
Collaborative Funds would be removed from the budget. 
 
There was a lengthy discussion of debt, service, bonding, new construction, and County 
reserves. 

 
 
6. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Regular Meeting of January 24, 2018 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve the regular meeting minutes of January 
24, 2018 as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0. 

 
 
7. General Business 
 

a. Proposed Ordinance 18 - __: Barnstable County Fiscal Year 2019 Capital 
Budget 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve proposed Ordinance 18-__ (to be 
numbered) adopting the Barnstable County Fiscal Year 2019 Capital Budget and 
authorizing its forwarding to the Assembly of Delegates for review and vote as 
presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
The Board noted that there would be no allocation for a building through bonding. 
Commissioner Cakounes noted that State Senator Cyr has shown interest in the 
County Complex. Mr. Cambareri spoke regarding his concerns on Fire Rescue 
Training Academy spending. He expressed his opinion that the spending plans did 
too little to consider environmental concerns. 

 
8. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair 

 
 

9. Commissioners’ Actions 
 

a. Authorizing the execution of a new contract with the Massachusetts 
Department of Fish and Game, Division of Marine Fisheries for a Fiscal Year 



 
 
 
                             BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                         JANUARY 31, 2018 
 
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 6 OF 7 
 

2018 disbursement of a legislative earmark in the amount of $58,334.00, for 
the period from execution through June 30, 2018, to support shellfish 
propagation efforts on Cape Cod.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of a new contract with 
the Massachusetts Department of Fish and Game, Division of Marine Fisheries, 
for a Fiscal Year 2018 disbursement of a legislative earmark, in the amount of 
$58,334.00, for a period from execution through June 30, 2018, to support shellfish 
propagation efforts on Cape Cod as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, 
approved 3-0-0 
 

b. Authorizing the Execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the chairperson to execute certificates 
for dissolving septic betterments as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, 
approved 3-0-0 

 
 
10. Commissioners’ Reports 

 
Commissioner Beaty spoke regarding the AmeriCorps Advisory and Human Services 
Advisory meetings. He also spoke regarding an upcoming Hyannis Growth Incentive Zone 
meeting at Barnstable Town Hall. 

 
Commissioner Cakounes spoke regarding his intent to meet with Mr. Cambareri on certain 
budgetary issues as well as his work on County leases. 
 
 

11. County Administrator’s Report 
 

There was no report offered. 
 

 
12. Adjournment 

 
Barnstable, ss. at 11:42 A.M. on this thirty-first day of January A.D. 2018, Commissioner 
Beaty made a motion to adjourn, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0.



 
 
 
                             BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                         JANUARY 31, 2018 
 
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 7 OF 7 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved, Board of Regional Commissioners: 
 

Mary Pat Flynn, Commissioner Ronald R. Beaty, Vice-Chair Leo G. Cakounes, Chair 

Date 

  Janice O’Connell, Regional Clerk 

The foregoing records have been read and approved, January    , 2018.  

A true copy, attest: 



 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6a 
Budget Review: Budget Workshop (NO DOCUMENTS) 

  



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7a 
Discussion on a proposed memorandum of understanding between Barnstable County 
and the Cape Cod Commission regarding dredge services (NO DOCUMENTS) 

  



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7b 
Discussion on a proposed memorandum of understanding between Barnstable County 
and the Cape Cod Commission regarding expanding regional information, technology, 
and communications services in partnership with the towns of Barnstable County (NO 
DOCUMENTS) 

  



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7c 
Proposed Ordinance 18- ___ Adopting Barnstable County's Operating Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2019 (NO DOCUMENTS) 

  



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7d 
Proposed Ordinance 18- ___ Adopting Barnstable County’s Dredge Enterprise Fund 
Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2019 (NO DOCUMENTS) 

  



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9a 
Authorizing the approval of a timesheet for Jack Yunits, County Administrator, for the 
period of January 21, 2018 through February 3, 2018 (NO DOCUMENTS) 

  



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9b 
Authorizing the execution of a contract for a grant from the Massachusetts Department 
of Children and Families to Children’s Cove, in the amount of $140,000.00, for a period 
of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, to provide services to families 

  



















 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9c 
Authorizing the execution of a contract amendment for a grant, from the National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) through the Woods Hole 
Oceanographic Institution (WHOI), to the Cape Cod Cooperative Extension, in the 
amount of $679,582.00, for the period of February 1, 2014 through August 31, 2018, 
to fund the “Sea Grant Extension Program”, extending the period of performance from 
January 31, 2018 through August 31, 2018, and changing the grant’s principal 
investigator (PI) 

  

























 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9d 
Authorizing the creation of a new fund for a contract for a grant from Cape Cod 
Healthcare to the Department of Health and Environment, in the amount of $1,350.00, 
for the period of January 19, 2018 through October 31, 2018, to support the Cape Cod 
Medical Reserve Corps with funding for the purchase of Narcan to provide Barnstable 
County's seven regional emergency shelters with medical supplies that will treat 
potential drug overdose victims at each site 

  





 

 
 

COMMUNITY BENEFITS PROGRAM MINI-GRANT REQUEST FY2018 

  PAGE 1 

The Cape Cod Healthcare (CCHC) Community Benefits program supports diverse projects and 
programs that contribute to the improved health status of the residents of Barnstable County.  

In addition to the annual strategic grant process, Cape Cod Healthcare’s Community Benefits program 
also considers requests for mini-grants on an ongoing basis. 

Proposals must meet the following criteria:  
• Address at least one of the following health needs: chronic disease, infectious disease, 

behavioral health, access to care and disease prevention and wellness  
• Demonstrate impact for residents within or across Barnstable County 
• Possess clear goals and measurable outcomes  

Please check the primary grant guideline that best aligns with your project or program: 

   Chronic Disease and/or Infectious Disease Management 
   Behavioral Health (mental health conditions, substance use disorders, co-occurring 

disorders, and comorbidities) 
   Access to care 
   Disease prevention and wellness 

 
Contact Information: 

Project Title: Narcan for Regional Emergency Shelters 

Name of Organization: County of Barnstable - Cape Cod Medical Reserve Corps (CCMRC) 

Address: P.O. Box 427/3195 Main St. 

City: Barnstable State: MA Zip Code 02630 
Name and Title of Contact 
Person: Diana Gaumond, Director 

Contact telephone number (508) 375-6641 

Contact e-mail address: diana.gaumond@barnstablecounty.org 

  
Total cost of 
project/program: $1,312.50 

  
Total amount of funding requested for this 
proposal: $1,312.50 
 
Do you have other funding sources:  Yes    No   
 
Is your organization a 501 (c)(3)?    Yes   No   
 
To submit your proposal, please complete both pages of this form and email the document to 
communitybenefits@capecodhealth.org.   

mailto:communitybenefits@capecodhealth.org


 

 
 

COMMUNITY BENEFITS PROGRAM MINI-GRANT REQUEST FY2018 

  PAGE 2 

 
Narcan for Regional Emergency Shelters 

1. Describe the mission of your organization: 
The mission of Barnstable County is to promote and sustain a pro-active open government that 
enhances the quality of life for the citizens of Barnstable County.  The mission of the Cape Cod 
Medical Reserve Corps (CCMRC) is to engage volunteers to strengthen public health, emergency 
response, and build community resiliency.  To achieve this mission, CCMRC is committed to 
building a self-sustaining, trained and credentialed volunteer force.   

2. Describe the program for which you are requesting support: 
Barnstable County’s Regional Emergency Preparedness Committee, through the CCMRC, seeks 
funding in the amount of $1,312.50 for its “Narcan for Regional Emergency Shelters Program.”  
Funding will enable the CCMRC to provide Cape Cod’s seven shelters with medical supplies that 
will treat potential drug overdose victims at each site.  The shelter system is activated by county 
officials, in collaboration with first responders, weather experts, trained staff and volunteers in 
advance of anticipated emergency weather or natural disaster events.  The shelters are open to 
all seeking assistance, including those who are most vulnerable to the impact of power outages, 
medical issues, major weather events, etc.  Among these are individuals who may be suffering 
from addiction.  A shelter is not equipped to be a rehab center and, as such, has not found prior 
need to have medical supplies available to treat people who may be taking drugs and be 
susceptible to possible overdose or death.  During Hurricane Irma in Palm Beach County, Florida, 
WPTV reported, “According to county officials, two people have overdosed at emergency shelters 
set up for Hurricane Irma evacuees in Palm Beach County.”  Barnstable County ranked number 
three statewide for fatal overdose rates in 2015 and 2016.  If it can happen in Palm Beach 
County, it can happen here on Cape Cod.  

3. What are the specific anticipated outcomes of this program?  
The anticipated outcome for this program is to respond to overdose events, should they occur at 
the shelter sites, and prevent possible death of individuals who seek shelter during an emergency 
event such as hurricane, blizzard, or natural disaster.  Narcan, (naloxone) is an opioid antagonist 
used for the complete or partial reversal of opioid overdose, including respiratory depression.  
Narcan is also used for diagnosis of suspected or known acute opioid overdose and for blood 
pressure support in septic shock.   

4. Describe the target population that will be served: 
The CCMRC program will target individuals throughout Cape Cod who seek emergency shelter 
and may suffer from opioid addiction. In the event of a possible overdose, trained staff will be 
prepared to administer the life-saving medication and then refer the individual to the emergency 
medical team deployed to each of the seven shelters.   

5. Describe what geographic regions of the Cape will be served: 
The program will serve all 15 towns that comprise Barnstable County. 

6. Quantify the number of individuals will be served by this proposal: 
Although the number of individuals who will be served is unknown at this time, the program will 
provide assurance to all individuals seeking shelter during an emergency event.  During the 
Blizzard (Nemo), over 1200 people sought shelter.  In an event of that size, the CCMRC will be 
able to respond to and treat up to three overdose victims in each of the seven shelters.  Knowing 
that one dose per person may not be effective, an additional dose may be required.  In all, the 
CCMRC is requesting funding for at least four doses per shelter for a total of 30 doses. The shelf 



 

 
 

COMMUNITY BENEFITS PROGRAM MINI-GRANT REQUEST FY2018 

  PAGE 3 

life of this life-saving medication is approximately two years.  The CCMRC anticipates its ability to 
discover necessary funding sources for the future. 

7. How does this project feature coordination with other organizations, 
including Cape Cod Healthcare, if applicable? 
The CCMRC is among the partnering organizations that collaborate as members of the 
Barnstable Sheltering Taskforce to provide emergency sheltering for all of Cape Cod. 

8. Is this program reimbursable by public or private agencies?  Yes      No   

9. Has your organization secured funding from other sources to support the 
program?  Yes      No   

10. Does your organization intend to provide operating support for this 
program?  
Yes              No   

11. Is this a new or continuing program? 
This is a new program for Barnstable County in response to the increasing likelihood that 
overdose events may occur at the sheltering sites. 



 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9e 
Authorizing the execution of a memorandum of agreement, acting by and through the 
Cape Cod Commission, with the Town of Mashpee, in the amount of $450,000.00, for a 
period from execution through December 31, 2019, to utilize nitrogen reduction 
mitigation funds to support the design of its proposed wastewater treatment plant 
 



Page 1 of 2 

Memorandum of Agreement 
Between 

 
Barnstable County through 
Cape Cod Commission 
3225 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
 
Town of Mashpee 
16 Great Neck Road North 
Mashpee, MA 02649 
 
This Memorandum of Agreement (Agreement) is entered into this    day of     2018 by and 
between Barnstable County, acting by and through the Cape Cod Commission (hereafter referred to as the 
“Commission”) and the Town of Mashpee (hereafter referred to as the “Town.”) 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission has received mitigation funds as a result of its Development of Regional Impact review 
process, and 
 
WHEREAS, the funds are required to be used for nitrogen reduction efforts in Mashpee, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town is interested in utilizing the mitigation funds for this purpose. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Town enters into this Memorandum of Agreement with the Commission. 
 
1.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TOWN 
 
A) The Town agrees to use these mitigation funds to support a preliminary design of the proposed wastewater treatment 

plant as outlined in the Town’s request dated January 19, 2018 (Attachment A). The Town will submit written 
requests for payment as work is completed and will include copies of all vendor invoices, as appropriate. 
 

B) The Town shall maintain books, records, and other compilations of data pertaining to this work and/or services 
performed and the funds received and paid out under this Agreement to the extent and in such detail as shall 
properly substantiate claims for payment under the Agreement. All such records shall be kept for a period of six (6) 
years or for such longer period as is specified herein. All retention periods start on the first day after final payment 
under this Agreement. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced 
prior to the expiration of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, whichever is later.  

 
C) The Town shall maintain financial records of the application and expenditure of the funds received hereunder in at 

least as much detail as may be contemporaneously required to comply with the financial reporting and record 
keeping requirements mandated by the Bureau of Accounts of the Department of Revenue, or any successor thereto, 
with respect to the Town’s ordinary custody and expenditure of funds. 

 
2.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMISSION 
 
The Commission agrees to provide the Town with mitigation funds in an amount not to exceed $450,000 for expenses 
incurred in connection with this Agreement. The Commission will reimburse the Town as invoices are submitted as 
described in 1A above. 
  





ATTACHMENT A






























	Agenda Packet_BRC_20180207
	20180207-5b_Minutes Draft_BRC_20180131
	Agenda Packet_BRC_20180207
	20180207-9b_Contract_RDO_COVE_MADCF
	Agenda Packet_BRC_20180207
	20180207-9c_Grant_RDO_CCCE_WHOI_NOAA_2236_Amendment
	Agenda Packet_BRC_20180207
	20180207-9d_New Fund_RDO_HLTH_Cape Cod Healthcare
	FY18_Narcan_new fund memo
	FY18_Narcan for Regional Emergency Shelters_CCHC Mini Grant Application

	Agenda Packet_BRC_20180207
	20180207-9e_Contract_CCC_Mashpee_DRI_Mitgation Funds

